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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

INTRODUCTION 

The Metropolitan Housing and Development Agency ("MDHA" or the "Agency") is pleased to 
present its Annual Financial Report and Other Financial Information for the year ended 
September 30, 2012. 

Responsibility and Controls 

MDHA has prepared and is responsible for the financial statements and related information included 
in this report. A system of internal accounting control is maintained to provide reasonable assurance 
that assets are safeguarded and that the books and records reflect only authorized transactions. 
Limitations exist in any system of internal control. However, based on recognition that the cost of 
the system should not exceed its benefits, management believes its system of internal accounting 
control maintains an appropriate cost/benefit relationship. 

MDHA's system of internal accounting control is evaluated on an ongoing basis by MDHA's 
internal financial staff. McCauley, Nicolas & Company, LLC, our external auditors, also consider 
certain elements of the internal control system in order to determine their auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements. 

Management believes that its policies and procedures provide guidance and reasonable assurance 
that MDHA's operations are conducted according to management's intentions and to a high standard 
of business ethics. In management's opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position ofMDHA as of September 30,2012, and the changes in its financial 
position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Audit Assurance 

The unqualified opinion of our independent external auditors, McCauley, Nicolas & Company, 
LLC, on the September 30, 2012, financial statements is included in this report. 
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MCCauley 
Nicolas 

CPAs & ADVlSOflS 

Board of Commissioners 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency 
Nashville, Tennessee 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Metropolitan Development and 
Housing Agency (the "Agency"), a component unit of the Metropolitan Government of 
Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, as 
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Agency's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency as of 
September 30, 2012, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
January 2, 2013, on our consideration of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 10 be presented to supplement the 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of the financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for forming an opinion on the financial statements of the Metropolitan 
Development and Housing Agency as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Additionally, the 
accompanying Financial Data Schedule and the Schedule of Actual Costs for the Specified Project 
from Inception of the Project Through Completion are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part ofthe financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards, the Financial Data Schedule, the Schedule of Actual Costs for the Specified Project from 
Inception of the Project Through Completion are the responsibility of management, were derived 
from, and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 

~#~f,~Lc!C!-
McCauley, Nicolas & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Jeffersonville, Indiana 
January 2, 2013 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

This section of the Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency's ("MDHA" or the "Agency") 
annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the Agency's financial performance 
during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011. Please read this analysis in conjunction 
with the Agency's financial statements and accompanying notes. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Fiscalyear 2012 

The Agency's total net assets increased $2 million or .6%, in part as a result of the following: 

• Cash and Investments decreased $18.3 million (18%) 
• Bonds, Notes and Other Liabilities decreased $6.3 million (7%) 
• Operating Revenues decreased $38.3 million (26%) 
• Operating Expenses decreased $22.7 million (17%) 
• Operating Gain decreased $15.6 million (> 1 00%) 
• Governmental Capital Contributions decreased $9.9 million (56%) 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The annual financial report consists of two parts: management's discussion and analysis and the 
basic financial statements. The financial statements include a statement of net assets, statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and notes to the financial 
statements. The statement of net assets provides a record or snapshot of the assets and liabilities at 
the close of the fiscal year. It presents the financial position of the Agency on a full accrual 
historical cost basis. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets presents the 
results of the business activities over the course of the fiscal year. The statement of cash flows is 
related to the other financial statements by the way it links changes in assets and liabilities to the 
effects on cash and cash equivalents over the course of the fiscal year. The notes to the financial 
statements provide useful information regarding the Agency's significant accounting policies, 
significant account balances and activities, certain material risks, obligations, commitments, 
contingencies and subsequent events. 

The Agency is supported by rentals, fees, and federal and state grants and follows enterprise fund 
reporting; accordingly, the financial statements are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise fund statements offer short-term 
and long-term financial information about the activities and operations of the Agency. While 
detailed sub-fund information is not presented, separate accounts are maintained for each program of 
the Agency to control and manage money for particular purposes or to demonstrate that the Agency 
is properly using specific grants. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY 

Net Assets 

Fiscalyear 2012 as compared to fiscalyear 2011. 
%Increase 

2012 2011 {Decrease2 

Current Assets $ 93,709,553 $ 112,149,695 (16)% 

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital Assets 270,758,230 $ 263,218,528 3 % 
Other Assets 72,244,885 $ 65,677,813 10 % 

Total Assets $ 436,712,668 $ 441,046,036 (1)% 

Bonds and Notes Payable $ 71,980,760 $ 78,082,816 (8)% 

Other Liabilities 22,014,356 22,216,741 (2)% 

Total Liabilities $ 93,995,116 $ 100,299,557 (6)% 

Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets $ 252,328,209 $ 241,657,382 4% 

Net Assets Restricted for Other Purposes 3,445,586 1,673,618 >100 % 

Unrestricted Net Assets 86,943,757 97,415,479 (11)% 

Total Net Assets $ 342,717,552 $ 340,746,479 1 % 

The Agency's total net assets increased $2 million, or .6%, in part as a result of the following: 

• Restricted cash decreased and notes receivable increased $8 million due to the funding of a 
special project financed by tax increment financing 

• Unrestricted cash decreased $10 million due to decrease of operating funding for the low 
rent housing program and the principal payments on tax increment financing notes 

• Notes payable decreased $7 million due to the debt payments on a convention center hotel 

- 7 -



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY (CONTINUED) 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

Fiscalyear 2012 as compared tofiscalyear 2011 

%Increase 

2012 2011 (Decrease) 

Operating Revenues 

Rentals $ 10,692,770 $ 10,438,631 2% 

Governmental Operating Revenue 82,336,430 107,473,782 (23)% 

Local Government Development Activities 9,014,471 23,577,921 (62)% 

Other 7,823,673 6,663,814 14 % 

Total Operating Revenues 109,867,344 148,154,148 (26)% 

Operating Expenses: 

Administrative expenses 15,311,681 16,818,840 (9)% 

Other 96,545,511 117,707,106 (18)% 

Total Operating Expenses 111,857,192 134,525,946 (17)% 

Operating Gain (Loss) (1,989,848) 13,628,202 (115)% 

Capital Contributions 7,655,032 17,532,230 (56)% 

Nonoperating Revenues (3,694,111) 4,394,922 (184)% 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 3,960,921 21,927,152 (82)% 

Change in Net Assets $ 1,971,073 $ 35,555,354 (94)% 

The decrease in local government development activities revenue and administrative and other 
operating expenses is due to the waterfront redevelopment project. 

The decrease in governmental operating revenues and capital contributions and other operating 
expenses is a result of the completion of grants funded by the American Reinvestment and 
Recovery Act. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUEDl 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Fiscal year 2012 as compared tofiscal year 2011•· 

%Increase 

2012 2011 (Decrease) 

Land $ 82,353,826 $ 77,928,605 6 % 
Infrastructure 21,155,548 21,155,548 - % 
Buildings 284,480,557 271,318,540 5 % 
Equipment 4,091,985 4,580,095 (11)% 
Construction in progress 18,636,029 21,035,348 (11)% 

Total 410,717,945 396,018,136 4 % 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (139,959,715) (132,799,608) 5 % 

Net Capital Assets $ 270,758,230 $ 263,218,528 3 % 

Capital assets increased $7.5 million, or 3% during fiscal year 2012. During fiscal year 2012, the 
Agency expended $19 million on capital activities. This included $596,000 for roof replacement at 
Andrew Jackson Homes, $2 million of emergency electrical repairs at Parthenon Towers as a result 
of fire damage, $200,000 for design services for renovations at Scattered Sites, $4.4 million for 
work on greenway improvements, $5.2 million for development of Uptown apartments, and $6.4 
major capital renovations at Edgefield Manor, Hadley Park Towers, Gernert Studio Apartments, 
Madison Towers, Parthenon Towers, and Vine Hill Towers. 

Capital asset acquisitions are capitalized at cost. Acquisitions are funded from federal grants and 
operating subsidy. 

Depreciation expense on capital assets totaled $10.9 million during fiscal year 2012. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Fiscal year 2012 as compared tofiscal year 2011; 

2012 2011 

Total Notes Payable -other $ 71,980,760 $ 78,082,816 
=========== 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED) 

At September 30, 2012, the Agency's note principal and interest outstanding totaled $72 million- a 
decrease of 8% from the prior year. The notes payable includes a promissory note secured by 76 (3-
bedroom) apartments; a promissory note secured by the Levy Place Apartments; and a promissory 
note secured by the J. Henry Hale Apartments. Also included in the notes payable is the tax exempt 
municipal lease purchase financing contract of $8 million and a $57.5 million loan for the 
construction of a convention center hotel and expansion of the Country Music Hall of Fame, secured 
by revenue generated by tax increment properties in the Capitol Mall Redevelopment district. 

NEW BUSINESS 

MDHA is constructing the Uptown Flats, a three story, seventy two (72) residential unit 
apartment complex at 1503 Dickerson Road. Funding for this project includes $5,000,000 from 
the Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 (NSP) and a loan of $3.2 million from Suntrust 
Bank. Completion is scheduled for 2013. 

CONTACTING THE AGENCY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

The financial report is designed to provide our residents, customers, investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the Agency's finances and to demonstrate the Agency's accountability for the 
monies it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Director of Finance at MDHA, P.O. Box 846, Nashville, TN 37202. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Investments, at fair value 

Receivables: 
Tenant, net of allowances 

SEPTEMBER 30,2012 

ASSETS 

Amounts due from other governmental agencies 

Current portion of notes receivable, net of allowances 

Interest on investments 

Other 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Investments, equity method 
Notes receivable, net of allowances 

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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42,366,944 

35,276,965 

4,358,823 

60,265 

5,861,126 

173,245 
31,799 

1,972,725 

2,884,806 
722,855 

93,709,553 

270,758,230 

508,782 
71,736,103 

72,244,885 

436,712,668 



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30,2012 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Funds held for others 

Accounts payable 
Contract retention payable 

Compensated absences payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Due to tenants 

Deferred revenue 

Due to other governments 
Current portion of long-term debt 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Deposits 

Long-term debt, less current maturities 
Long-term compensated absences payable 

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Restricted for other purposes 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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4,929,476 

7,043,826 
138,617 

737,244 

1,414,403 

1,066,994 

78,273 
4,138,493 
6,504,275 

26,051,601 

571,259 
65,476,485 

1,895,771 

67,943,515 

93,995,116 

252,328,209 
3,445,586 

86,943,757 

342,717,552 

436,712,668 



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Rentals 
Governmental operating revenue 
Program income 
Local government development activities 
Other income 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Cost of Services: 

Tenant services 
Utilities 
Ordinary maintenance and operations 
Protective services 
Other direct program costs 
Housing assistance payments 
Administration 

Depreciation 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

OPERATING LOSS 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest income 
Impairment allowance on notes receivable 
Loss on disposition of assets 
Interest expense 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES- NET 

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

Capital Contributions 

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes are an intregal part of this financial statement. 
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10,692,770 
82,336,430 

371,152 
9,014,471 
7,452,521 

109,867,344 

971,566 
7,107,190 

13,052,229 
1,032,615 

26,434,090 
37,068,752 
15,311,681 
10,879,069 

111,857,192 

(1,989,848) 

646,563 
(162,861) 

(1,194,005) 
(2,983,808) 

(3,694, Ill) 

(5,683,959) 

7,655,032 

1,971,073 

340,746,479 

342,717,552 



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from rental operations 

Receipts from program income 

Receipts from govemment subsidy for operations 

Receipts from local governmental development activities 

Receipts from other 

Receipts from inventmy sales 

Payments for inventmy purchases 

Payments to and on behalf of employees 

Payments for other administrative expenses 

Payments for other direct program costs, including housing assistance payments 

Program loan activities: 

Cash expended for program loans 

Principal collections on notes receivable 
Interest income collections 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from governmental capital grants 

Purchases of capital assets 

Proceeds from capital debt 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 

NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchases of investments 

Proceeds from the sales and maturities of investments 
Interest received 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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$ 10,692,703 

376,971 

87,173,065 

5,330,141 

5,068,683 

732,500 

(199,926) 

(19,481,130) 

(2,616,074) 

(78, 733,683) 

(8, 172,803) 

284,354 
131,461 

586,262 

7,688,943 

(19,378,815) 

1,414,500 

1,545,800 

(7 ,516,5 56) 
(3,318,120) 

(19,564,248) 

(6,300,808) 

6,248,996 
650,150 

598,338 

(18,379,648) 

96,023,557 

$ 77,643,909 



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED} 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating loss 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 

Bad debt expense 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Increase in accounts receivable 

Increase in inventories 

Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets 

Increase in due to tenants 

Decrease in accounts payable and amounts due to other governments 

Increase in deferred revenue and other deposits 

Increase in accrued liabilities and compensated absences 

Program loan activities: 

Cash expended for program loans 
Principal collections on notes receivable 

TOTAL ADWSTMENTS 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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$ (1,989,848) 

10,879,069 

1,787,035 

(899,522) 

323,704 

(200,399) 

59,254 

(1,499,333) 

(78,140) 

76,657 

(8,172,803) 
300,588 

2,576,110 

$ 586,262 



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 -NATURE OF THE AGENCY 

The Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency of Nashville, Tennessee ("MDHA" or the 
"Agency"), a public corporate body, was organized in 1938 under the laws of the State of 
Tennessee and is a discretely presented component unit of the Metropolitan Government of 
Nashville and Davidson County (the "Metropolitan Government"). The Agency was created for 
the purpose of providing affordable housing opportunities in a safe environment. MDHA has 
administrative responsibility for various other community development programs whose primary 
purpose is the development of viable urban communities including the administration of capital 
projects on behalf of the Metropolitan Government. 

The governing body of the Agency is its Board of Commissioners, composed of seven members 
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson 
County, Tennessee. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and basis of presentation 
The financial statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting with an economic 
resources measurement focus. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. As permitted by accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), the Agency has elected to apply all relevant 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and only applicable Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) Accounting Standards Certification (A C) pronouncements 
issued on or after November 30, 1989 that do not contradict GASB pronouncements in the 
preparation of the financial statements. 

The Agency distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from grant agreements and providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with the principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the Agency include program specific grants, rental income from tenants of 
the various single and multi-family housing projects and development fees for the administration of 
various community development programs and capital projects of the Metropolitan Government. 
Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

Reporting entity 
As described in GASB Statement No. 34, paragraph 134, the Agency meets the definition of a 
special purpose government ("SPG"). MDHA is a legally separate entity that is engaged in only 
business-type activities. Business-type activities are defined as activities that are financed in whole 
or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. SPGs engaged only in business
type activities are required to present only the financial statements required for proprietary funds, 
which includes Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A"), basic financial statements, 
and Required Supplemental Information ("RSI"). All inter-program activities have been eliminated 
in these financial statements. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Proprietary Fund Types 

CONVENTIONAL LOW RENT HOUSING PROGRAM 
This fund is used to account for all of Agency owned public housing properties, any mixed finance 
public housing properties (which are not owned by the Agency), and any Capital Funds costs. It is 
the largest and most active of the funds and is controlled through an annual operating budget, 
which is approved by the Board of Commissioners. 

CENTRAL OFFICE COST CENTER 
This program contains all the income and expenses associated with the Agency's centralized 
functions (e.g. executive, finance, human resources, information technology, purchasing, central 
maintenance, etc.) The establishment of the program was required by HUD regulations relating to 
asset management. 

SECTION 8 VOUCHER PROGRAM 
This fund is used to account for the administration of the Agency's Section 8 vouchers program. It 
is funded by HUD and seeks to provide prospective residents with greater choice in selection of 
assisted housing. 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACTION PLAN PROGRAMS 
This fund has been created to account for the administration of programs funded by HUD. The 
goals of these programs are to address the problems of affordable housing, homelessness, 
community development needs, and economic opportunities for all citizens, particularly for very 
low-income and low-income persons. 

LOCAL PROGRAMS 
This fund accounts for the state funded programs and grants and programs administered on behalf 
of the local government by the Agency. 

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 
This fund accounts for all programs that are neither federal, state nor local that are administered by 
the Agency. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Agency's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 
Cash equivalents are stated at fair value. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The Agency uses the allowance for bad debts method of valuing doubtful accounts receivable 
which is based on historical experience, coupled with a review of the status of existing receivables. 
An allowance for doubtful accounts of$2,878,374 for tenant accounts receivable has been provided 
by management at September 30, 2012. 

Investments 
Investments consist primarily of certificates of deposit and are stated at cost, which is fair value 
given the nature of the investments. The accrued interest on the investments is included in 
receivables in the statement of net assets. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Capital assets 
Capital assets include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, sidewalks, 
and similar items), with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life 
of one year or more. Capital assets are stated at cost. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs 
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. The 
costs of U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") "Capital Fund" projects 
are reported as construction-in-progress until audited cost certification reports are approved by 
HUD, at which time such costs are transferred to appropriate fixed assets categories. Depreciation 
is provided by the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets: 

Building and improvements 
Infrastructure 
Furniture and Equipment 

10 to 40 years 
1 0 to 40 years 
3 to 15 years 

Additionally, the Agency holds certain capital assets under agreements with the Metropolitan 
Government. Under the agreements, the proceeds from the sale of such assets revert to the 
Metropolitan Government. The assets recorded in capital assets at fair value at the date of transfer 
with a corresponding liability recorded for the expected amount owed to the Metropolitan 
Government upon sale. 

Inventory 
MDHA's inventory consists of vacant properties that have been purchased or received as 
contributions from the Metropolitan Government. Inventory also includes single-family homes that 
were constructed with federal or state funds and are available for sale to qualified agencies or 
individuals. Properties purchased or constructed are reported at historical cost. Properties 
contributed by the Metropolitan Government are recorded at fair value at the date of gift. These 
costs are reported as inventory until such time as the property is sold or used. 

Provision for uncollectible notes 
A note receivable is considered impaired when, based on current information, it is probable that all 
amounts of principal and interest due will not be collected according to the terms of the note 
agreement. The allowance for uncollectible notes is established by charges to program services 
expense and is maintained at an amount which management believes adequate to absorb losses on 
existing notes. Uncollectible notes are charged to the allowance account in the period such 
determination is made. The provision for uncollectible notes receivable was $17,382,830 at 
September 30, 2012. 

Compensated absences 
Employees earn annual leave at a rate ranging from 12 days per year for the first five years of 
service, up to a maximum of 25Yz days per year after 20 years. There is no requirement that annual 
leave be taken; however, the maximum permissible accumulation is 76Yz days. Sick leave is 
accumulated at the rate of one work day per month. Unused sick leave may accumulate to an 
unlimited amount. At termination, employees are paid for any accumulated annual leave, and 
employees who have completed 15 years or more of service will be paid 20% of their unused sick 
leave. All annual leave and vested sick leave are accrued in the period incurred. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Use of estimates in preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Restricted Assets 
Restricted assets consist of cash and certificate of deposits, which are legally restricted. The 
restricted assets are to be used for purposes specified under the Housing Choice Voucher or Family 
Self Sufficiency programs for certificates of deposit. The restricted assets also include escrow 
accounts for the loan proceeds to be used for the construction of the convention center hotel. When 
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Restricted assets totaled 
$35,276,965. 

Bank Overdraft Reporting 
The Agency utilizes two bank accounts for disbursing funds and each program draws from these 
two accounts. Due to pending drawdowns and requests for reimbursements, a program might 
reflect negative cash, even though the Agency as a whole is reporting sufficient unrestricted cash. 
Our audited financial statements are reported at entity level, therefore the net cash balance is 
reported. HUD reporting is done by program and does not allow negative amounts to be input into 
the cash field, consequently we "reclass" the negative cash for programs that have to be reported 
separately as bank overdraft. Unrestricted cash per financial statements as of September 30, 2012 
is $42,366,944. Unrestricted cash for REAC reporting is $40,924,618 with federal grants reporting 
bank overdrafts of $1,442,326. 

Tenant Accounts Receivable Net of Bad Debt Expense 
The State of Tennessee Comptroller's Office review of our 2004 audited financial statements cited 
that in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, revenues in 
proprietary funds should be reported as net of all related allowances, which include amounts 
pertaining to uncollectible accounts. Therefore, the increase and decrease in the estimate of 
uncollectible accounts should be reported net of revenue instead of bad debt expense. The 
Agency's bad debt expense charged against revenue was $662,283 for the year ended September 
30, 2012. 

NOTE 3 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 

In March 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 40 "Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures," 
which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2004. Risk disclosures in previous financial 
statements (under the provisions of GASB Statement No.3) focused only on custodial credit risk. 
GASB Statement No. 40 not only addresses custodial credit risk but other common areas of 
investment risk as well, including interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

NOTE 3 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

A. Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that, in the event of failure by a financial 
institution, the Agency may not be able to recover the value of its deposits and investments or 
collateral securities that are in the possession ofthe financial institution. The policy of the Agency is 
to invest, on a daily basis, all idle funds in financial institutions that are secured by collateral of 
identifiable United States government securities. All cash and investments are insured up to 
$250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or other equivalent insurance 
company of depository financial institutions. The deposits exceeding the insured or registered limits 
are collateralized with securities held by the Agency's financial institution. 

B. Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. The Agency's investment policy limits investments to provide the optimum 
return on the investment consistent with the cash management program of the Agency. 

Investments are made based upon prevailing market conditions at the time of the transaction. The 
Agency reviews its cash and investment needs in order to maintain adequate liquidity to meet its cash 
flow needs. Investments will typically be limited to securities maturing in periods of up to one year, 
or such lesser period that coincides with expected disbursements by the Agency. 

C. Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. Investments are made under the 'prudent investor' standard to ensure that (a) due 
diligence is exercised in accordance with State law, (b) any negative deviations are reported timely 
and (c) reasonable action is taken to control any adverse developments. The Agency's investment 
policy requires investments to be made in accordance with HUD Financial Handbook, 7475.1 
Chapter 4. 

D. Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Agency's investment policy does not limit the amount it may invest with one financial institution 
as long as all funds are secured by the FDIC or identifiable United States government securities. 

E. Foreign Currency Risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect fair value of an 
investment or a deposit. All of the Agency's deposits and investments are dominated in United States 
currency. 

Schedule of restricted cash with offsetting liability or restricted net assets as of September 30, 2012: 

Funds held for others 
Deposits 
Due to resident councils 
Net Asset: restricted for other purposes 
Current and long-term debt for energy performance note 
Current and long-term debt for Omni Hotel 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 3 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Funds held for others $4,929,476 are cash and cash equivalents held in MDHA's name and 
managed by the Agency under a 'Memorandum of Understanding' (MOU) for the benefit of 
certain not-for-profit organizations and affiliate entities. 

Deposits of$571,259 are held for participants in the HUD Family Self-Sufficiency program. 

Amounts due to resident councils of $536,380 are tenant participation funds from HUD which are 
held for use by the duly elected resident councils. 

Net Assets restricted for other purposes of $3,445,586 are excess Section 8 housing assistance 
funds under the Housing Choice Voucher program. 

Current and long-term debt for repayment of the energy performance note of $4,455,755 is 
included in restricted cash for the asset management properties. 

Current and long-term debt for the Omni Hotel of $21,338,509 include debt proceeds being held in 
an escrow account for Omni Nashville, LLC, the developer and owner of the convention center 
hotel. 

Deposit and Investment Policy 
MDHA's deposit and investment policy is governed by the laws ofthe State of Tennessee and the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development guidelines. Permissible investments include direct 
obligations of the U. S. Government and Agency securities, certificates of deposit, savings 
accounts, repurchase agreements and the State of Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool. 

Deposits in financial institutions are required by State statute to be secured and collateralized by 
the institutions. The collateral must meet certain requirements and must have a total minimum 
market value of 105% of the value of the deposits placed in the institutions, less the amount 
protected by federal depository insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are 
obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its subdivisions. 
Collateral requirements are not applicable for financial institutions that participate in the State of 
Tennessee's bank collateral pool. 

As of September 30, 2012, the majority of MDHA's deposits were held by financial institutions 
that participate in the bank collateral pool administered by the Treasurer of the State of Tennessee. 
Participating banks determine the aggregated balance of their public fund accounts for MDHA. 

The amount of collateral required to secure these public deposits must be at least 105% of the 
average daily balance of public deposits held. Collateral securities required to be pledged by the 
participating banks to protect their public fund accounts are pledged to the State Treasurer on 
behalf of the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are pledged in 
the aggregate rather than against each individual account. The members of the pool may be 
required by agreement to pay an assessment to cover any deficiency. Under this additional 
assessment agreement, public fund accounts covered by the pool are considered to be insured for 
purposes of credit risk disclosure in accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and 
Investment Risk Disclosures. 

Investments 
Certificates of deposit were covered by the State bank collateral pool, federal depository insurance 
or collateralized with securities held by the government's agent in the government's name. 

The Agency has not established a limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. Citizens 
Bank has 100% of the Agency's investments as of September 30, 2012 consisting of certificates of 
deposit. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 3 -CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

At September 30, 2012, the future maturities ofMDHA's investments are as follows: 

Carrying Maturity Not Subject 
Type of Investment Amount Fiscal2012 to Matmity 

Certificates ofDeposit $ 4,358,823 $ 4,358,823 $ 
Investment in Park at Hillside, LLC 508,782 508,782 

TOTAL $ 4,867,605 $ 4,358,823 $ 508,782 

NOTE 4 -FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

The financial statements reflect the adoption of a new accounting standard related to fair value 
measurements, which provides a comprehensive framework for measuring fair value and expands 
required disclosures concerning fair value measurements. Specifically, the standard sets forth a 
definition of fair value and establishes a hierarchy prioritizing the inputs to valuation techniques, 
giving the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities and 
the lowest priority to unobservable value inputs. The adoption of the standard did not have a 
material impact on the Agency's financial statements. 

The Standard defines levels within the hierarchy of inputs as follows: 

Level 1 -Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets 

Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets (other than those 
included Level 1) which are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly 

Level 3 -Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant 
inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable 

Fair values of financial assets measured on a recurring basis at September 30, 2012 consisted of the 
following: 

Fair· Value Levell Level2 Level3 

Certificates ofDeposit $ 4,358,823 $ 4,358,823 $ $ 
Investment in Park at Hillside, LLC 508,782 508,782 

$ 4,867,605 $ 4,358,823 $ - $ 508,782 

At September 30, 2012, included above under Level3 is the investment in a partnership. Changes 
in the fair value of the Agency's level 3 Investment in Park at Hillside, LLC during the year were 
as follows: 

Balance at September 30, 2011 

Net Loss 

Balance at September 30, 2012 

Investment 

In Partnership 

$ 

$ 

509,586 

(804) 

508,782 

- 22-



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30, 2012 follows: 

Balance 
Seutember 30, 2011 Additions Retirements Transfers ~tember 30, 2012 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 77,928,605 $ 27,900 $ (1,607,549) $ 6,004,870 $ 82,353,826 
Construction in progress J1,035,348 20,822,889 - (23,222,208) 18,636,029 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 98,963,953 20,850,789 (1,607,549) (17,217,338) 100,989,855 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 271,318,540 51,953 (4,309,235) 17,419,299 284,480,557 
Infrastructure 21,155,548 - - 21,155,548 
Furniture, equipment, & machinery - dwellings 3,072,250 53,067 (66,251) - 3,059,066 
Furniture, equipment, & machinery - administrative 1,507,845 - (474,926) - 1,032,919 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 297,054,183 105,020 ( 4,850,412) 17,419,299 309,728,090 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (121,658,791) (9,775,424) 3,177,784 (128,256,431) 

Infrastructure (7,715,392) (830,961) - - (8,546,353) 

Furniture, equipment, & machinery - dwellings (2,317,165) (185,556) 66,251 - (2,436,470) 

Furniture, equipment, & machinery - administrative {1,108,260) (87,127) 474,926 - {720,461) 

Total accumulated depreciation (132,799,608) (1 0,879,068) 3,718,961 - j139,959,715) 

Total capital assets, bemg depreciated, net 164,254,575 (10,774,048) (1 '131 ,451) _____!_1419,299 169,768,375 

Total capital assets, net $ 263,218,528 $ 10,Q76,741 $ (2,739,000) $ 201,961 $ 270,758,230 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 6- NOTES RECEIVABLE 

Notes receivable, including related accrued interest, consisted of the following as of 
September 30,2012: 

2012 

Vine Hill Homes Loans $ 13,031,131 
Preston Taylor Homes Loans - Phase I 13,007,339 
Preston Taylor Homes Loans - Phase II 7,765,432 
Rehabilitation Loans 2,946,291 
Business District Loans 56,103 
Fa<;ade Loans 181,221 
Neighborhood Stabilization Promissory Notes 14,257,543 
Tax Increment Financing Loan 37,947,118 
Other 100,000 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (17,382,830) 

Net notes receivable and accrued interest receivable 71,909,348 

Less current portion (173,245) 

Net notes receivable and accrued interest receivable, less current portion $ 71,736,103 

Vine Hill Homes Loans were made to Vine Hill Homes, LLC for the construction and 
development of the Vine Hill project. The loans are funded by various federal and state grant 
programs, including HOPE VI, Comprehensive Grant, UDAG repayment funds, Refunding 
Agreement and the State of Tennessee House grant funds. The nonrecourse loans are secured by a 
leasehold deed of trust. Loans made from the UDAG repayment funds and the Refunding 
Agreement, totaling $942,000, accrued interest at the rate of 10.8% per annum. These loans were 
repaid from the sale of federal low-income housing tax credits in November 2005. (See Note 13.) 
The loan funded from the State of Tennessee House grant funds, in the amount of $250,000, is 
non-interest bearing and payable in thirty years. The remaining loans accrue interest at the rate of 
1.5% per annum. Accrued but unpaid interest shall be due and payable within sixty days after the 
end of each calendar quarter to the extent of cash flow as defined in the Amended and Restated 
Operating Agreement. Cumulative accrued, unpaid interest earned totaled $1,923,741 at 
September 30, 2012. Based upon a review of the collectability of the accrued interest, an 
allowance for the full accrued interest balance has been established by management at that date. 
The notes mature in November 2028. Under a certain Purchase Option Agreement entered into by 
MDHA and Vine Hill Homes, LLC, subsequent to the Tax Credit Compliance Period, on the 
maturity date, MDHA has the right of first refusal to acquire the Vine Hill project at the greater of 
the total outstanding debt on the property or the fair market value of the property. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 6 -NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 

Preston Taylor Homes Loans - Phase I were made to Preston Taylor Homes, LLC for the 
construction and development of the Preston Taylor project. The loans were funded by various 
federal grant programs, including HOPE VI, and UDAG repayment funds. The nonrecourse loans 
are secured by a leasehold deed of trust. The outstanding loan balance accrues interest at the rate 
of .1% per annum. Accrued but unpaid interest shall be due and payable within sixty days after 
the end of each calendar quarter to the extent of cash flow, as defined in the Amended and 
Restated Operating Agreement. Cumulative accrued, unpaid interest earned totaled $127,723 at 
September 30, 2012, and has been added to the note receivable balance. The notes mature on 
December 29, 2040. Under a certain Purchase Option Agreement entered into by MDHA and 
Preston Taylor Homes, LLC, subsequent to the Tax Credit Compliance Period, MDHA has the 
right of first refusal to acquire the Preston Taylor Phase I project at the greater of the total 
outstanding debt on the property or the fair market value of the property. 

Preston Taylor Homes Loans - Phase II were made to Preston Taylor Homes, LLC for the 
construction and development of the Preston Taylor project. The loans were funded by various 
federal grant programs, including HOPE VI, Capital Fund Grant, and UDAG repayment funds. 
The nonrecourse loans are secured by a leasehold deed of trust. The outstanding loan balance 
accrues interest at the rate of .1% per annum. Accrued but unpaid interest shall be due and payable 
within sixty days after the end of each calendar quarter to the extent of cash flow, as defined in the 
Amended and Restated Operating Agreement. Cumulative accrued, unpaid interest earned totaled 
$68,6.30 at September 30, 2012, and has been added to the note receivable balance. The notes 
mature on January 4, 2042. Under a certain Purchase Option Agreement entered into by MDHA 
and Preston Taylor Homes, LLC, subsequent to the Tax Credit Compliance Period, MDHA has 
the right of first refusal to acquire the Preston Taylor Phase II project at the greater of the total 
outstanding debt on the property or the fair market value of the property. 

Rehabilitation Loans are made from the Community Development Block Grant and Home 
Investment Trust programs to aid homeowners in rehabilitating substandard housing or historic 
homes. Loan repayments on rental properties are made monthly, for a maximum of 10 years, 
together with interest at .3% per annum, with a maximum loan amount set at $35,000 for projects 
rehabbing one to two units, $50,000 for three to four units, and $75,000 for five or more units. 
Effective March 2003, the Board of Commissioners approved 3% loans for new construction of 
rental properties; forgivable loans for rehabilitation of rental projects with five or more units; and 
forgivable loans for rehabilitation of rental projects with one-half or more of the total number of 
units containing four or more bedrooms. The four bedroom units must be rented for a low rental 
rate over the 10 year loan period. The loans are forgiven at the rate of 10% on each anniversary 
date. 

Business District Loans are made from the Community Development Block Grant program to 
promote small business and provide incentive for reinvestment in areas of general commercial 
deterioration. The loans are for a maximum of $20,000 at the prime interest rate for a term of five 
to ten years. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 6 -NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 

Facade Loans are made from the Community Development Block Grant program to aid 
businesses in repairing and renovating the exterior of buildings in the commercial neighborhood 
strategy areas. The non-interest bearing loans are for a maximum of $3.5,000 per building with a 
five year repayment term. 

Neighborhood Stabilization Promissory Notes were executed between MDHA and non-profit 
entities that received NSP funds for the acquisition, rehabilitation and redevelopment of 
foreclosed or vacant properties. The properties have an affordability period per the grant 
agreements of 25 years. If the borrower complies with all of the terms and requirements of the 
restrictions, the entire balance of the Note will be forgiven at the end of the affordability period. 
No interest shall be due or payable on this Note. The provision for uncollectible notes includes 
100% ofthe NSP notes which total $14,257,543 as of September 30,2012. 

Tax Increment Financing Note was made when The Convention Center Authority of Nashville 
and Davidson County entered into a development and funding agreement with Omni Nashville, 
LLC to provide for an 800-room convention center hotel with associated structured parking, 
meeting spaces, restaurants, and other amenities. As part of the incentives for this development, 
MDHA provided tax increment financing for land acquisition and other TIP-eligible expenses. 
The tax increment notes receivable balance as of September 30, 2012 was $3 7,94 7, 118. 

Other notes receivable consist of business loans to local development agencies for affordable 
housing development and loans made from the Technical Assistance Program Fund to promote 
privately owned small businesses in low-income areas and loans related to the sale of properties. 

NOTE 7- LONG-TERM DEBT 

A summary of changes in MDHA's long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 2012 is 
presented below: 

Balance 
Balance September 30, Due within 

October 1, 2011 Additions Retirements 2012 one year 

Notes Payable- other $ 78,082,816 $ 1,414,500 $ (7,516,556) $ 71,980,760 $ 6,504,275 

MDHA executed a promissory note with Regions Bank for costs related to the construction of 
a new downtown convention center headquarters hotel facility and the expansion of The 
Country Music Hall of Fame and Museum to connect to the new hotel. The loan was secured 
by revenues generated by certain tax increment properties in the Capitol Mall Redevelopment 
district. The balance as of September 30, 2012 was $57,468,556. 

MDHA entered into a deed of trust note with The Housing Fund to acquire and rehabilitate 10 
single family homes owned by the Department of Housing and Urban Development. The 
homes were temporary housing for tenants in the Disaster Housing Assistance Program. As of 
September 30,2012, the balance ofthe note is $143,840. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Notes Payable - Other 

$1,400,000 promissory note with Bank ofTennessee, dated May 24,2012, payable in monthly 
installments of principal and interest through June 25, 2027.. Interest accrues at the variable 
rate ofthe Prime Rate minus two percentage points, but no less than zero .. The note is 
collaterialized by a 76-unit apartment complex and assignment ofrents and leases .. 

$2,500,000 promissory note with Pinnacle National Bank, payable in monthly installments of 
principal and interest through July 16, 2014 .. Interest accrues at a tax-free rate of5 .. 8%. The 
note is collaterialized by Sam Levy Homes (a 226-unit apartment complex) and assignment of 
rents and leases. 

$2,500,000 construction loan agreement with Sun trust Bank, originally dated December 29, 
2005 for funding construction ofthe forty John Henry Hale Homes market rate apartments .. 
On April23, 2009, the loan was amended and converted to a $2,500,000 promissory note, 
payable in monthly installments of principal and interest through June 29, 2012 .. Effective 
June 29, 2012 the promissory notes was extended to September 29, 2012. The loan was in the 
process ofbeing executed and was fmalized on October 18, 2012 .. Interest on the 
outstanding balance is variable based upon the 30-day LIBORrate, plus 175 basis points. 
The note is collateralized by L Henry Hale Apartments (a 228-unit apartment complex) and 
assignments ofrents and leases .. 

$12,100,000 Tax-Exempt Municipal Lease Purchase Financing Contract with Pinnacle 
National Bank, dated July 2, 2009 with a frxed rate of3 .. 98% for the acquisition and 
installation of equipment necessary to implement the energy savings program. The interest 
will accrue for 13 months with no payment due .. At the end ofthe 13 month period, August 
2, 2010, the accrued interest was be capitalized and added to the original $12,100,000 lease 
amount with 28 quarterly payments to follow .. Pinnacle Bank placed a frrst perfected security 
interest in the total project and associated equipment. 

$61,560,036 promissory note with Regions Bank, dated May 16, 2011 for the purchase ofland 
and pay certain redevelopment costs related to the construction of a new downtown 
convention center headquarters hotel facility in Nashville, Tennessee and the expansion of 
The Country Music Hall of Fame and Museum to connect to the new hotel. The loan will 
bear interest at a per annum rate equal to 3 .. 84% .. Interest on the outstanding principal 
balance ofthe loan will be payable semi-annually, in arrears, with the frrst payment being due 
and payable January 1, 2012, and subsequent installments being payable on the frrst 
Business Day of each July and January thereafter until the Matmity Date .. Beginning on 
July 1, 2012 and each July 1 thereafter until the Maturity Date, principal shall also be due in 
the amount of$2,480,000 .. A debt coverage ratio of at least 125% will be maintained .. The 
loan is securitized by revenues from tax increment revenue generated by certain properties in 
the Capitol Mall Redevelopment District. The loan matures Ju~y 1, 2014 .. 

$285,750 deed of trust note dated February 4, 2011 and $588,500 deed oftrust note dated 
February 10, 2011 with the Housing Fund for the acquisiton and rehabilitation of 10 single 
family homes owned by the Department ofHousing and Urban Development and used by 
Disaster Housing Assistance Program tenants as temporary housing. The interest rate is 
frxed at 3.25% and the maturity date is the earlier ofFebruary 4, 2013 or the date any sale or 

$ 1,368,880 

2,314,176 

2,061,204 

8,624,104 

57,468,556 

other transfer ofthe real property subject to the deed oftrust securing this note. 143 840 

$ 71.980.760 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

NOTE 7- LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

A schedule of principal maturities oflong-term debt at September 30, 2012 is as follows: 

Year Ending September 30, 2012 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Thereafter 

Total 

NOTE 8 - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

$ 6,504,275 
59,104,807 

1,915,403 
1,989,009 
1,565,186 

902,080 

$ 71,980,760 

Tax increment financing ("TIF'') is a method of funding certain public investments for 
redevelopment by recapturing, for a time, all or a portion of the increased tax revenue that may 
result if private investment can be stimulated to occur. Tax increment can only be generated by the 
increased taxes resulting from private development on land in a redevelopment district that has 
been acquired and re-sold or leased by MDHA. The tax increment due to the difference in the tax 
basis is then diverted to the redevelopment agency which may use those funds to finance public 
purpose expenditures or to repay bonds or notes that were issued to finance those expenditures. 
These loans are special limited obligations of MDHA, payable solely from and secured by a pledge 
of the tax increment revenues designated for the payment of the loan. The loans do not constitute 
debt or a pledge of credit of MDHA or the Metropolitan Government and, accordingly, are not 
reported in the accompanying financial statements. 

The Tax Increment Financing Loans, including related accrued interest payable, aggregated 
approximately $49.8 million at September 30, 2012. 

Section 108 is the loan guarantee provision of the Community Development Block Grant Program. 
Section 108 provides communities with a source of financing for economic development, housing 
rehabilitation, public facilities and large scale physical development projects. The Metropolitan 
Government has borrowed funds under this program and guaranteed repayment of the loan by 
pledging present and future Community Development Block Grants. MDHA is the agent 
designated by the Metropolitan Government to administer the CDBG program; therefore, the 
outstanding loan does not constitute a debt of MDHA, and it is not reported in the accompanying 
financial statements. At September 30, 2012, the Section 108 loans outstanding aggregated to 
approximately $2.6 million. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 9 -RISK MANAGEMENT 

MDHA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. MDHA maintains 
commercial insurance covering each of those risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is 
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to MDHA. During the years ended 
September 30,2012, settled claims have not exceeded this commercial insurance coverage. 

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

The MDHA retirement plan is a 401A Plan administered by the Vanguard Group. The Plan, which 
is principally a defined contribution plan, also provides certain minimum defined benefits for 
employees who were participants in the MDHA Retirement Plan as of September 30, 2000. 
Employees are eligible to participate beginning the first day of the month following the date of 
hire. There are no required contributions by the participants; however, participants may make 
voluntary contributions from 0.5% to 10% of their basic compensation and MDHA contributes 
13% of participants' basic compensation. Contributions are invested in any oftwenty-two funds as 
elected by the participant. Investment options and voluntary contributions may be changed daily. 

Participants are immediately vested in their voluntary contributions plus actual earnings. 
Participants are also immediately vested in 5.5% of the 13% ofMDHA's contributions. Each year 
of participation in the Plan, participants vest at the rate of 20% of the remaining balance and 
become fully vested after 5 years. 

Benefits are paid in the form of a cash distribution or various other annuity options at normal 
retirement date, age 65, death or disability. Participants may also elect to roll the vested portion of 
their retirement savings into another qualifying plan or an IRA or leave the amount in the Plan. 
Early retirement may be elected by employees at age 55 who have at least ten years of service. 

MDHA contributions to the Plan for the years ended September 30, 2012 amounted to $1,786,178, 
which equaled the amount of required employer contributions. Employee voluntary contributions 
were $162,181 in 2012. MDHA's payroll for employees covered by the Plan for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2012 was $13,739,828. Total payroll for MDHA during the fiscal year ended 
September 30,2012 amounted to $15,313,829. 

MDHA sponsors a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457. The plan permits all employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. 
Such amounts are not available to them until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable 
emergency. No contributions are made to this plan by the Employer. 

NOTE 11 - LEASES 

MDHA leases certain office space and equipment under leases accounted for as operating leases. 
The minimum future rental commitments under these leases are not significant. Total lease 
expenditures made for the year ended September 30,2012 were $91,942. 

MDHA also receives rental income under a certain ground lease accounted for as an operating 
lease. The lease has an initial term of thirty years and provides for an option to renew for seven 
successive ten-year periods. The lessee has a commitment to pay base rents totaling $500,000 
annually through 2016. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 11 -LEASES (CONTINUED) 

Future minimum lease payments to be received by MDHA under this lease are as follows: 
Year ending September 30, 2012 

Total 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

$ 

$ 

500,000 
500,000 
500,000 
500,000 

2,000,000 

In addition, rental income, other than rent directly related to low-income housing units, is received 
under various other short-term land and building leases accounted for as operating leases. These 
leases are either cancelable leases or the future minimum rentals under these leases are 
insignificant. Rental income from these sources totaled $195,623 for the year ended September 
30,2012. 

NOTE 12- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

MDHA receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal, state and local 
governmental agencies in the form of grants and operating subsidies. The disbursement of funds 
received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified 
in the agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims 
resulting from such audits could become a liability of MDHA. In the opinion of management, any 
such disallowed claims would not have a material effect on the financial position of MDHA at 
September 30,2012. 

At September 30, 2012, the Agency had outstanding construction commitments of 
approximately $14.2 million. These outstanding commitments will be paid by grants 
committed to the Agency by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and the 
Metropolitan Government ofNashville and Davidson County, Tennessee. 

MDHA is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of operations. 
Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of 
management and MDHA's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial condition of MDHA. Accordingly, no provision for loss, if any, 
related to these matters has been made in the financial statements. 

During the year ended September 30, 2012, MDHA appealed a jury verdict rendered against 
MDHA related to the value of land obtained for the convention center development. MDHA 
originally paid $14,800,000 for the land. However, a jury determined the value of the land to 
be $30,400,000. In accordance with an agreement between MDHA, Metropolitan Government 
of Nashville and Davidson County and The Convention Center Authority of The Metropolitan 
Government of Nashville and Davidson County (the Authority), the Authority will transfer to 
MDHA the amount necessary to repay all costs and expenses for land acquisition. Therefore, 
no provision for loss has been made in the financial statements. The appeal is under 
advisement by the Appellate Court. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 

NOTE 13- AFFILIATE AGREEMENTS 

MDHA has assisted in the financing of a new 152-unit multifamily residential development 
known as Vine Hill Homes (the "Project") in the form of loans to Vine Hill Homes, LLC. These 
loans were made in consideration ofVine Hill's construction of the Project, including 136 units to 
be used as public housing. The 136 units are eligible to receive the benefit of operating subsidies 
provided to MDHA by HUD. Additional funding for the development of Vine Hill came from the 
sale of federal low-income housing tax credits in the amount of approximately $1,500,000. 
Proceeds from the sale of the tax credits were used to repay certain loans made by MDHA to Vine 
Hill. (See Note 6.) 

The apartment project is managed by MDHA which is to receive a fee of 5% of the annual gross 
revenues of the Project with respect to the nonpublic housing units. Vine Hill has executed a 
ground lease agreement with MDHA, with various use restrictions and operating requirements, for 
a term of ninety-nine years. Upon expiration of the agreement, Vine Hill shall have an option to 
purchase the land for $100, provided the development notes have been paid in full. (See Note 6.) 

MDHA has also assisted in the financing of mixed income affordable and market rate residential 
housing in the form of loans to Preston Taylor Homes, LLC. Preston Taylor Homes Phase I 
consists of the demolition of 300 units of housing on the north side of the Preston Taylor site and 
new construction of 51 rental duplex and townhouse buildings comprising 182 units of rental 
housing. Of the 182 units, 170 shall be public housing units eligible to receive the benefits of 
operating subsidies provided to MDHA by HUD. The remaining 12 units shall be market units. 
Phase I of the project was completed in November 2002. Preston Taylor Homes Phase II consists 
of the demolition of250 units of housing and new construction of 116 units, ofwhich 104 shall be 
public housing units and 12 are market rate units. Phase II of the project was completed in 
October 2003. (See Note 6.) 

The apartment project is managed by MDHA which is to receive a fee of 6% of the gross revenues 
of the Project with respect to the nonpublic housing units. A ninety-nine year ground lease has 
been executed with MDHA. Upon expiration of the agreement, Preston Taylor shall have an 
option to purchase the land for $100, provided the development notes have been paid in full. (See 
Note 6.) 

MDHA guarantees certain financial obligations of Vine Hill Homes, LLC and Preston Taylor 
Homes, LLC that include advances of funds, capital contributions, loans, and any and all other 
payments and options per the Operating Agreements. Tax credit availability and compliance 
guarantees are also being provided by MDHA. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

NOTE 14- NET ASSETS 

The Agency's net assets are categorized as follows: 
• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This component of net assets consists of 

capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances 
of any bonds, mortgages, notes, capital lease obligations or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted net assets - This component includes net assets that have been restricted in 
accordance with the terms of the Agency's revenue bond agreement as well as certain 
deposits and investments under grant programs. 

• Unrestricted net assets - This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not 
meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

The changes in net assets for the year ended September 30, 2012 are as follows: 
Invested in 

Capital Assets Restricted Umestricted Totals 

Net Assets- September 30,2011 $ 241,657,382 $ 1,673,618 $ 97,415,479 $ 340,746,479 

Change in net assets - 2012 10,670,827 1,771,968 (10,471,722) 1,971,073 

Net Assets- September 30,2012 $ 252,328,209 $ 3,445,586 $ 86,943,757 $ 342,717,552 

NOTE 15- INCOME TAXES 

The Agency has qualified with the Internal Revenue Service and the Tennessee Department of 
Revenue as a tax-exempt organization for income tax purposes and, accordingly, there is no 
provision in the financial statements for federal or state income taxes. Management has 
determined that the application FIN48 has no effect on its financial statements. 

NOTE 16- MAJOR FUNDING SOURCE 

The Agency is substantially funded by Federal awards. Management anticipates a reduction of 
funding though the amount cannot be determined at this time. 

NOTE17-SUBSEQUENTEVENTS 

In preparing these financial statements, the Agency has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through January 2, 2013, the date the combined financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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GRANT 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Passed through State Department of Human Serv1ces: 

Weathenzatwn Ass1stance for Low-Income Persons 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

US. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Direct Programs: 

Public and Indian Housmg 

Cluster: 
Sechon 8 Housmg Chmce Vouchers 
Sectwn 8 5yr Mamstream Vouchers 

Lower-Income Housmg Ass1stance Program: 
Secllon 8 Moderate RehabilitatiOn - Single Room Occupancy 
Sectwn 8 Moderate RehabilitatiOn - Single Room Occupancy 

METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30, 2012 

FEDERAL 
CFDA 

NUMBER 

81.042 

14.850 

14.871 
14.879 

14.249 
14.249 

GRANTOR'S 
NUMBER 

Z-12-409 

A-3777 

A-3152V 
TN005DVOOOI 

TN005SR0007 
TN005SCOOOI 

( contmued on next page) 
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GRANT 
PERIOD 

10-01-11 TO 06-30-12 

10-01-11 to 09-30-12 

10-01-11 to 09-30-12 
10-01-11 to 09-30-12 

10-01-11 to 09-30-12 
10-01-11 to 09-30-12 

40,067,290 
408 395 

513,172 
75,599 

EXPENDITURES 

$ 825,480 

825,480 

18,258,773 

40,475,685 

588,771 



GRANT 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED) 

Direct Programs (Contmued): 

Cluster: 
Public Housmg - Capital Fund Program: 

Public Housmg Capital Fund 
Public Housmg Capital Fund 
Public Housmg Capital Fund 

Public Housmg Capital Fund Compeli!Jve 
(Recovery Act Funded) 

Shelter Plus Care Program: 
Shelter Plus Care 
Shelter Plus Care 
Shelter Plus Care 
Shelter Plus Care 
Shelter Plus Care 
Shelter Plus Care 
Shelter Plus Care 

Supportive Housmg Program: 
Supportive Housmg Program (HMIS) 
Supportive Housmg Program (HMIS) 

METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2012 

FEDERAL 
CFDA 

NUMBER 

14.872 
14.872 
14.872 

14.884 

14.238 
14.238 
14.238 
14.238 
14.238 
14.238 
14.238 

14.235 
14.235 

GRANTOR'S 
NUMBER 

A-3777 (TN43P00550109) 
A-3777 (TN43P00550110) 
A-3777 (TN43P00550111) 

A-3777 (TN00500001109R) 

TN37C60-4001 
TN37C60-4014 

TN0070C4J041 003 
TN0068C4J041 003 
TN0070C4J0411 04 
TNO 162C4J041 000 
TN0068C4J041104 

TN0060B4J041003 
TN0060B4J041104 

( contmued on next page) 
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GRANT 
PERIOD 

09-15-09 to 09-14-13 
07-15-10 to 07-14-14 

08-03-11 TO 08-02-15 

09-28-09 to 09-23-12 

04-27-07 to 04-26-12 
04-27-07 to 04-26-12 

03-01-11 TO 02-28-12 
03-15-11 TO 02-28-12 
03-01-12 TO 02-28-13 
12-01-11 TO 11-30-16 
04-01-12 TO 03-31-13 

07-01-11 TO 06-30-12 
07-01-12 TO 06-30-13 

EXPENDITURES 

1,968,743 
3,229,235 
1,856,105 
7,054,083 

715,063 
7,769,146 

16,694 
28,355 
16,066 

769,615 
12,721 
14,106 

758 144 
1,615,701 

43,661 
15 816 

59,477 



GRANT 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 

URBAN DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED) 

Direct Programs (Contmued): 

Resident Opportumty and Supportive Services Program: 
Resident Opportumty and Supportive Services 
Resident Opportumty and Supportive Services 
Resident Opportumty and Supportive Services 

Passed Through Metropolitan Government of 
Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee: 

Cluster: 
Community Development Block Grants Program: 

Commumty Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 
Commumty Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 
Commumty Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 

Commumty Development Block Grant ARRA Entitiement Grants 
(Recovery Act Funded) 

HOME Investment Partnerships Program 

Emergency Shelter Grants Program 

Housmg Opportumties for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) 

Neighborhood Stabiiizatwn Program (Recovery Act Funded) 

METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30 2012 

FEDERAL 
CFDA 

NUMBER 

14.870 
14.870 
14.870 

14.218 
14.218 
14.218 

14.253 

14.239 

14.231 

14.241 

14.256 

GRANTOR'S 
NUMBER 

TN005RPS080A009 
TN005RFS200AO I 0 
TN005RFS008AOII 

B-XX-MC-47-0007 
B-10-MF-47-0002 
B-08-MN-47-0004 

B-09-MY-47-007 

M-XX-MC-47-0203 

E-XX-MC-47-0004 

TN-HXX-F002 

B-09-CN-TN-0024 

( contmued on next page) 
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GRANT 
PERIOD 

07-13-10 to 07-09-2013 
06-20-2011 TO 08-31-12 

09-20-11 TO 08-31-13 

N/A 
04-30-2010 to 

03-06-09 to 03-06-13 

06-04-2009 to 9-30-2012 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

02-11-10 to 02-11-13 

216,929 
98,203 
37,505 

2,912,246 
2,319,918 

~ 
5,236,848 

585 786 

EXPENDITURES 

352,637 

5,822,634 

975,205 

144,927 

826,730 

11,479,008 



GRANT 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED) 

Direct Programs (Contmued): 

Homelessness PreventiOn and Rapid Re-housmg Program 
(HPRP) (Recovery Act Funded) 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING 
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Passed Through Federal Highway Actmm1stratwn: 

Highway Planning and ConstructiOn (TDOT RMH Greenway Ext) 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2012 

FEDERAL 
CFDA 

NUMBER 

14.257 

20.205 

GRANTOR'S 
NUMBER 

S-09-MY-47-0004 

PIN 110937.00 

(contmued on next page) 
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GRANT 
PERIOD 

07-10-09 to 09-30-12 

06-11-08 to 06-15-13 

$ 

EXPENDITURES 

12,819 

88,381,513 

784,469 

784,469 

89,991,462 



PROGRAM 
NUMBER 

14.871 
14.879 
14.850 
14.256 
14.872 
14.884 
14.218 
14.253 

14.238 
14.239 
14.241 
81.042 
20.205 
14.249 
14.870 
14.231 
14.235 
14.257 

* 
* 
* 
* 

METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2012 

DESCRIPTION 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV cluster) 
Section 8 Five Year Mainstream Vouchers (HCV cluster) 
Public and Indian Housing 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (Recovery Act Funded) 
Public Housing Capital Fund (Capital Fund cluster) 
Public Housing Capital Fund Competitive (Recovery Act Funded) (Capital Fund cluster) 
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants (CDBG cluster) 
Community Development Block Grant ARRA Entitlement Grants 

(Recovery Act Funded) (CDBG cluster) 
Shelter Plus Care 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS 
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 
Highway Planning and Construction 
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation - Single Room Occupancy 
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services 
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 
Supportive Housing Program 
Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-housing Program 

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

*Tested as major programs in the current year. 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION-

$ 

$ 

EXPENDITURES 

40,067,290 
408,395 

18,258,773 
11,479,008 
7,054,083 

715,063 
5,236,848 

585,786 
1,615,701 

975,205 
826,730 
825,480 
784,469 
588,771 
352,637 
144,927 
59,477 
12,819 

89,991,462 

This schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency, and is presented in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which is the same basis of accounting as the basic financial statements. The information 
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 



Funds approved 

Funds expended 

METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF ACTUAL COSTS FOR THE SPECIFIED PROJECT 

FROM INCEPTION OF THE PROJECT THROUGH COMPLETION 

Excess (deficiency) of funds approved 

Funds approved 

Funds expended 

Excess (deficiency) of funds approved 

TN43P00550 1-09 

$ 8,793,313 
8,793,313 

$ 

TN005000001109R 

$ 3,305,206 
3,305,206 

$ 

The distribution of costs by project as shown on the Performance and Evaluation Report submitted to 
the Department ofHUD for approval is in agreement with the Agency's records .. 

All costs and related liabilities have been disbursed. 
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OTHER REPORTS 



MCCauley 
Nicolas 

CPAs ~ ADVlSORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Commissioners 
Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency 
Nashville, Tennessee 

We have audited the financial statements of the Metropolitan Development and Housing 
Agency ("the Agency"), a non-profit organization, as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2012, and have issued our report thereon dated January 2, 2013. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management of the Agency is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Agency's internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control 
over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, 
management, others within the Agency, federal awarding agencies, the Metropolitan 
Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee, and the State of Tennessee and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~#~i~L~(! 
McCauley, Nicolas & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Jeffersonville, Indiana 
January 2, 2013 
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MCCauley 
Nicolas 

C. PAs & ADVlSORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Board of Commissioners 
Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency 
Nashville, Tennessee 

Compliance 
We have audited the compliance of the Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency (the 
"Agency"), a component unit of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson 
County, Tennessee, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A·-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the Agency's major federal programs for the year ended 
September 30, 2012. The Agency's major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each 
of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Agency's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Agency's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Agency's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Agency's compliance with 
those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended September 30, 2012. However, the results of our auditing 
procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those requirements, which is required 
to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is disclosed in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Item 2012-01. 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the Agency is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable 
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Agency's internal 
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Agency's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified a certain 
deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency as 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2012-01. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

The Agency's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Agency's 
responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, 
management, others within the Agency, federal awarding agencies, the Metropolitan 
Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee, and the State of Tennessee and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~~d~~~~L~e 
McCauley, Nicolas & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Jeffersonville, Indiana 
January 2, 2013 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 

SECTION I- SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to 
be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to 

be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for 
major programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133? 
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Unqualified 

_yes_x_no 

_yes __x_ none reported 

_yes_x_no 

_yes_x_no 

___x_yes __ none reported 

Unqualified 

___x_yes __ no 



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED} 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' RESULTS (CONTINUED) 

Federal Awards- Continued 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDANumber 

14.850 

14.871 
14.879 

14.256 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Public and Indian Housing 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV cluster) 
Section 8 Five Year Mainstream Vouchers (HCV cluster) 

NSP-2 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _K_yes _no 

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

A. Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control 

None 

B. Compliance Findings 

None 
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$18,258,773 

$40,067,290 
$ 408,395 

$11,479,008 

$2,699,744 



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS {CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Item 2012-01- Public Housing Waitlist- Significant Deficiency 

Public and Indian Housing Program (CFDA #14.850) 

Condition: 
Five Public Housing Program applicants out of twenty-five applicants tested were ranked on the 
wait list in an incorrect order. This was due to the fact that those applicants were not properly 
awarded preferences in accordance with MDHA's Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy. 
Further, documentation could not be provided to show that three applicants who should have been 
offered housing in April2012 actually received offers. 

Criteria: 
All Public Housing Program applicants must be consistently added to the wait list and offered 
housing based upon the preferences and policies detailed in MDHA's Admissions and Continued 
Occupancy Policy. 

Effect: 
Five Public Housing Program applicants were not added to the wait list in the proper order based 
upon MDHA's Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy. Also, no documentation could be 
provided to show that three Public Housing Program applicants were selected from the wait list and 
offered units in the proper order. 

Cause: 
Four Public Housing Program applicants were added to the wait list with fewer preferences than 
they were eligible for despite the fact that those preferences were indicated on the applications. One 
Public Housing Program applicant was added to the wait list with more preferences than they were 
eligible for based upon MDHA's Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy. Finally, no notes 
were made in the Yardi system, and no other documentation was maintained to support that three 
Public Housing Program applicants received unit offers in April 2012 despite the fact that their 
names came to the top of the wait list and offers should have been made. 

Questioned Costs: 
The exact total of questioned costs, if any, could not be determined. 

Recommendation: 
MDHA should improve controls around the wait list process to ensure all applicants are added to the 
wait list and offered housing in accordance with their Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy. 
We recommend that the Director of Asset Management or another supervisory individual review a 
sample of applicants added to the wait list each month to help ensure that all properties have proper 
controls in place to ensure applicants are being added to the wait list based upon their actual 
preferences. Further, we recommend that all unit offers be documented either within the Y ardi 
system or within the applicant's pre-application file. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED} 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(CONTINUED) 

Item 2012-01- Public Housing Waitlist- Significant Deficiency 

Public and Indian Housing Program (CFDA #14.850) (Continued) 

Response: 
The Agency concurs with the finding and has implemented procedures to ensure all participants 
are added to the wait list and offered housing in accordance with our Admissions and Continued 
Occupancy Policy. 

Contact Person: 
Brenda Kennedy 

Anticipated Date of Completion: 
March 31,2013 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30, 2012 

Item 2011-01 CFDA No. 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Condition: 
Nine participants out of a sample of sixty participants tested were not given at least thirty days 
notice prior to increases in their tenant rent responsibility based upon their annual reexaminations. 
In addition, for one participant tested, an annual reexamination was not performed. 

Recommendation: 
Internal controls should be implemented to ensure timely annual reexaminations are performed for 
all program participants, and that participants are given at least thirty days' notice prior to increases 
in their tenant rent responsibility. 

Status: 
Based on the tests performed, MDHA has implemented control procedures to ensure timely annual 
reexaminations were performed for all program participants, and that participants were given at least 
thirty days' notice prior to increases in their tenant rent responsibility. 

Item 2011-02 CFDA No. 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Condition: 
Files were reviewed for fifteen Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) program participants who 
participated in the Family Self-Sufficiency Program (FSS) through the HCV program to ensure 
various requirements of the FSS program were being met, and that the participants' monthly escrow 
deposits were being calculated properly. For five of the fifteen participants tested, monthly deposits 
to their FSS escrow accounts were inaccurate. 

Recommendation: 
Internal controls should be implemented to ensure monthly escrow deposits are properly calculated 
and credited to participants' accounts based upon the participants' income information and area 
income limits. 

Status: 
Based on the tests performed, MDHA has implemented control procedures to ensure comprehensive 
reviews of all monthly escrow calculations are performed when HCV program participants graduate 
from the FSS program. This ensures that all escrow amounts paid out to program graduates are 
accurate. Further, tests showed that a random sample of HCV FSS program participants are now 
having their monthly escrow calculations reviewed on an annual basis. This helps ensure the 
monthly escrow deposits are properly calculated and credited to the participants' accounts. 
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METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 

Item 2011-03 CFDA No. 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Condition: 
Two applicants out of a sample of twenty applicants tested were added to the wait list, and housed, 
based upon having a homeless preference. However, no documentation could be provided to 
support that the applicants were homeless at the time of voucher issuance. 

Recommendation: 
Internal controls should be implemented to ensure proper documentation is maintained to support all 
preferences awarded to applicants and used to rank those applicants on the wait list and select them 
for voucher issuance. 

Status: 
Based on the tests performed, MDHA has implemented control procedures to ensure proper 
documentation is maintained to support all preferences awarded to applicants and used to rank those 
applicants on the wait list and select them for voucher issuance. 
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MCCauley 
Nicolas 

CPAs & ADVlSO~S 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURE 

Board of Commissioners 
Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency 
Nashville, Tennessee 

We have performed the procedure described in the second paragraph, which was agreed to by Metropolitan 
Development and Housing Agency (the Housing Authority) and the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, Real Estate Assessment Center (REA C), solely to assist them in determining whether 
the electronic submission of certain information agrees with related hard copy documents included within 
the OMB Circular A-133 reporting package. The Housing Authority is responsible for the accuracy and 
completeness of the electronic submission. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in 
accordance with the attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants. The sufficiency of the procedure is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this 
report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedure described below 
either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

We compared the electronic submission ofthe items listed in the "UFRS Rule Information" column 
with the corresponding printed documents listed in the "Hard Copy Documents" column. The results 
of the performance of our agreed-upon procedure indicate agreement or non-agreement of the 
electronically submitted information and hard copy documents as shown in the attached chart. 

We were engaged to perform an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-1.33, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, for the Housing Authority as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2012, and have issued our reports thereon dated January 2, 2013. The information in 
he "Hard Copy Documents" column was included within the scope, or was a by-product of that audit. 
Further, our opinion on the fair presentation of the Financial Data Schedule (FDS) dated January 2, 
2013, was expressed in relation to the basic financial statements of the Housing Authority taken as a 
whole. 

A copy of the financial statement package required by OMB Circular A-133, which includes the 
auditor's reports, is available in its entirety from the Housing Authority. We have not performed any 
additional auditing procedures since the date of the aforementioned audit reports. Further, we take no 
responsibility for the security of the information transmitted electronically to the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development, REAC. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Housing Authority and the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development, REAC, and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~/1/~.i~ L.t!(!. 
McCauley, Nicolas & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Jeffersonville, Indiana 
January 15, 2013 
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ATTACHMENT TO INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURE 

UFRS Rule Information Hard Copy Document(s) 

Balance Sheet and Revenue and Expense Financial Data Schedule, all CFDAs 
(data line items 111 to 13901) 

Footnotes (data element G.S000-010) Footnotes to audited basic financial 
statements. 

Type of opinion on FDS (data element Auditor's supplemental report on FDS 
G3100-040) 

Audit Findings Narrative (data element Schedule ofFindings and Questioned 
G.5200-010) Costs 

General information (data element series OMB Data Collection Form 
G2000, G2100, G2200, G9000, G9100) 

Financial statement report information (data Schedule ofFindings and Questioned 
element G3000-010 to G3000-0.50) Costs, Part 1 and OMB Data Collection 

Form 

Federal program report information (data Schedule ofFindings and Questioned 
element G4000-020 to G4000-040) Costs, Part 1 and OMB Data Collection 

Form 

Type of Compliance Requirement (G4200- OMB Data Collection Form 
020 & G4000-030) 

Basic financial statements and auditor's Basic financial statements (inclusive of 
reports required to be submitted auditor reports) 
electronically 
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Findings 

Agrees 

Agrees 

Agrees 

Agrees 

Agrees 

Agrees 

Agrees 

Agrees 

Agrees 



Metropolitan Development & Housmg Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary 

~~?,~,~,~~L?~":!:X~~,T~~;!!!~d/A-133 . Fisc~,LX:,~~--~~.9;,,_ /' D?f~0/2~~? '"" '""~""""--~"""' 
14.249 Sec~on 8 

Moderate 
14.241 Housing i 14 253 Community j 14.870 Resident : Rehabilitation 

1 Busmess Opportumiles for ~ Development Block" Opportunity and ; Single Roorr 

Aclivilies Persons with AID~--~'~";~~~~~ortiv~.~~-~~~.~s! Occupan:;=""""""" 
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Metropolitan Development & Hous1ng Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary 
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Metropolitan Development & Hous1ng Agency (TNOOS) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary 
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Metropolitan Development & Hous1ng Agency (TNOOS) 

NASHVILLE, TN 
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary 

Hous1ngAssistance~ 

Grant ',;.;,:_:_~~:_~,:.,._~,:;;-•~·-:;, ... ¢=_,;;;;,;;;;,_,.,,,,,,, __ 
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Metropolitan Development & Housmg Agency (TNOOS) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary 

=~=~=,~=-=~"~'"'@Y''""~'~'~.T,~~Ion Type Audiled/A-133 
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Metropolitan Development & Housmg Agency (TN005) 

NASHVILLE, TN 
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary 

Ne•ghborhood 
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Metropolitan Deveiopment & Housmg Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary 
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Metropolitan Development & Hous1ng Agency (TNOOS) 

NASHVILLE, TN 
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary 
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Metropolitan Development & Housmg Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Balance Sheet Summary 

Fiscal Year End: 09/30/2012 
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Metropolitan Development & Housmg Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Balance Sheet Summary 
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Metropolitan Development & Houstng Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Balance Sheet Summary 
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Metropolitan Development & Houstng Agency (TN005) 

NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Balance Sheet Summary 
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I .. ~.?~ .... J<..c.c.r~"·d .. C~.IllPe.n.sate.d. Absences .. : .. Non.Current... .. ..... 
""il.itY .. ~ .~?D.9.~~~~~.!"" 
_iabilities 
Pens1on and OPEB Liabilities 

[~5§ y;;;;;,·N~~:<:;~rre.nt.Lia~ititi;,;: · 

i 300 Total Liabilities 
!··························· 

6,940,812 

17,148,967 

!s_os1 Invested In capiiaii\8Seis~~~~~ Fi8iaied:.oeb'l 174:923277·; 
~· 5692 ···f'~;;Ci·s;;i;;~;e;!'ie;~e;;;;~Ci································································· 

511.2 Unr.,serv"d.' [)e.s'g0atecj~u0d ~ala.n.ce. 
511.1 Restricted Net Assets 
512.1-u~r~~(fi;;ted Ne-t-Asse7ts~~~~~···--- .. - ... ~~ ......... 3.353,849 

. 512 ... ~ .... L!n.res"rv"<J, IJ".d.""-'9".a.te.<Jf~~<JI3.a.~".nc.e~~ ... -.... 
1 .. 5.1 .. 3 ... T.()taJ§9~.i.tyi.t-J<J.t.f\.~~et~ ... 23.437,914 32,~.~-~~~~-1"' 236,394,801 

33,252,808 

62 



Metropolitan Development & Hous1ng Agency (TN005) 

NASHVILLE, TN 

Project Revenue and Expense Summary 

'''''"'%''"''·'~~-~~~~-··"'~~~~~~~~"""'~"''"-"''''''''"''~···~·~~mii~Sion !Yf?.:: ..••• ::-,':;dited/A-133 Fi~S?.I Ye<;~.~~-~:.. ........ ~ 

~~~~·~!,N0~5~~2,~!.~-"~ TN00500000~-··;:r~oo~.~~9.!.~1!-N~0~0~50~0~00~1 ~,LTN005000011 .. ·------

70.3.0.o ..• N..<:~.I!l~~.~t.l3eDt~.1. Revenue 
70400 Tenant Revenue- Other 

.ZQ(l()Q.I::I!:JQ'=I::Ii\Qe.~r~.ting Gr~11ts ····-~-····· 
;?961Q (;~pit~ I (;rants 

L7()I!.<!...i'v1>111."9er:nentf:~e 
' 70720 Asset Management Fee 
[22.7.30 s0C>I< l<e~e,~Iif~" ········ 

70740 Front Line Serv1ce Fee 
750 Other Fees 

:71200 .. Mortg~g<l llltE>rE>st IDC()r:ne 

· Z1300£!??,!':<l5!" from Disposition . ."! Assets Held f()~.l?.~l·"--
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets 

[ 71400 F ra~d .13ecovery 
[71500 Other Revenue 

' 71600 Gam<>r.L.?ss on sil.~E> . ."f Capital Ass~~~~·--~-.. 
' 72000 Investment Income- Restricted 
· 70000 Total Revenue 

'.911QQI\clrn211~s.t~ll.e Sal~r1.e.s ................. _____ ............ _____ .. ,, ..... . 

·, 9131Q El?()k:k"E>PinQ .Fee 
! 91400 Advertising and Marketing 

[~isi)o .... ~~pl?~eeB~~~fit .c?.ntrill.~tions.: .. i\.dJT1.1.111.st.r~tiy."···· 
i 91600 Office Expenses 

[9170~~~Q~I EJ<pe~~~ · 
i 91800 Travel 

!91810 Allocated Overhead 

i 9190Q.()ther 

L~?ooo ... J\ssetJv1allaH"rnelltF"e 
'.~2100 Tenallt .. ?.".'Y.I~.'OS_: Salanes 
' 92200 Relocation Costs .................. . 
'.92300 E:rllPioye~El~n.~fit .. (;ontributions- Tena.r1!.S.."E.V~~e,; ........ . 

92400 Tenant Serv1ces- Other 

92500 Total Tenant Serv1ces ·~~-----~· 

1.,.1 o6,s~~; 100,709 ! 1,249,603 ' 
"""""'""~-.~~~-~----------!'>---· 

1~3,787 ' .~· 150,025L,. 

~.!.~.~.?.!:?.~.~---~···· 

931.0.9 Wat"!:..~ .................................................... __ ....... .. ..... _ ..................... "c~,: c:~ ~... ""•' "" - ............................. .::o.~.-· ... ~.: ..... .. 
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Metropolitan Development & Houstng Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Revenue and Expense Summary 

' 93]QO E:rnPI?y~~ ~~~~~t c;o~tri~~ti?n~ : L)tiliti~s 
9~8..QO, __ g_t_h._er Utilities Expense 

SubmiSSIOn Type: Audited/A-133 Fiscal Year End: 
"!"'"'"''~-'""'"''" "'' 

TN005000001 I TN005000002 
''"""""'"-"' 1 """'""" 

···+········ 

09/30/2012 

5000003 tTN0050000131TN0050000101 TN005000011 : TNOO 
' ,,.,,,_'i?~~>'ll'll>lll'lll'ii:l~l!l!''< '' · ···;;;·,·;c'-:l<-'ll'll%"c'll:-">'l:-"~'ll=.... j 

-· 

I 

. 93qoq T?t~l L)tilities 1,205,905 1,439,38~ ; ''''''' . ~.973j .................... 1,,_1 __ 8~,4_35_ ..... 3~ •. 9_3_1 __ 2.31,0.33j 614,512! 1,2.1],921 ' 257,729 l 

""~~'~""~'"~'~~~~"""'"""'~~--------- "'"'"" 

94100 ()r~in~ry fv1~1~t~nance and_ Op~rations : L~b?r 

~4~90. ()rdi~aryfv1~_1nten_anc_e and Operatio_n_s __ (;g~trfjct"-···· 

I 945QO .. Eillpl~y~~~~n~~!C:ontri~ti£~.:J);:d,iD~.'Y .. fv1~.~~t<l.nance. 
! .?~,000. Total Ma1ntenance 

: 951 go Pr~~~~~~;;~-ServiC;s- Labor 

: 95200 Protective Services - Other Contract Costs ' ··-- ............ , .. ;;. ===-==--
' 95300 Protective Serv1ces - Other 

~55~.!J...E:Illpl?y<l_<l.~<ln_e_fit~ontributions - !:!_otective Serv1ces 
95000 Total Protective Serv1ces 

"''""m••""••••••••••••••••••••••••••"""'""""' ""' •""' "" """ '"" """ 

! 9!J11Q f'r?pertylnsurance 

!~!3}_20 Li~ilityl~surance 

~~6130. V\f()r~me~'s __ c;o_lllpensation 

L~!.4_D_j\llgth.e~ Insurance 
!._96100 Total insurance Prem1ums 

~6?0q ()t~~r(3~~~r~l E:~P<ln~~s. 
· 96?1Q __ c;ompensated Abs<ln_~!'_S~-··· 
. 96300 Pay111~nts 1n Li~u ?f!fj~e~ 
; 96400 Bad debt- Tenant Rents 
i 965oo Bad debt- fvl~ri9~9~s · 
: 966o0 8~(J (J6t,t: other 

L.96710 __ lnt.<lr<l.S.! .. ?! Mortgage (or Bonds) Pay~~ ............ . 

• 9!J]?O l~t<lr<lst ?~ [\J?t<ls f'ilY~~~~(~h?r:t iln~ L?~~ T~rrn) 
96730 Amortization of Bond Issue C:_o;;;s::ts":---::~::--:-~~~~

~6!0q T?t~llnt~r<l~t E;~p<)ns<l ~n(j J\rnortizfjtion C:?st 

~~~~-~~'"-' 

! 9!J9qo !Olfjl ()p<lrati~~ E:~penses 

Excess.o1.9p~rfjti~Q __ f{eve_~u<l .. ?Yer()p~rati~fLExpen~-"~ ····························'····· 

971 OO __ E_~trao_rd_i_n1l.'Y .. fv1.1l.lnt_e~.a~c-~ 

' 97200~~!'.:>':"'_lty_~~:!:Jo,-'n'--c:c.a:op;;.it=accliz:ce:cd:.....~~~~~~ 
97300 f:l?~s1n9 j\ss1~t~nce f'~Yrn<lnts 

97~(;0. .. f:IJ\F' ... F'.?.r:t~.~ili!Y:In ~~-· __ 
97 400 [l~pr<l~lali?n E:~p~n~~ 
97500 Fraud Losses 
'""'"""""""''~-~-,-~"' v"""' 

; 97600 Capital ()utl~ys : q?Y~£~rn<l~ta1y~"-9s 
! 97700 D<)btP,r,i~~~p~l£:~ment- Governmental F~D9..L ___ ~· 

126,123 171 ,036 ' _6o..~:gj 

1,0.17,~19 ~ ... ~oa,o~4 ..................... 1_,_0??,~.1-~--
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Metropolitan Development & Housing Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Revenue and Expense Summary 

97800 Dwelling Units Rent Expense 
[~qq(i{) To~l§~penses . . ..... . 

· 10010 Operating Transfer In 

· 12o?~9 oper~.~r1fiir~~sler o~i 

s.~.~miss1on Type: .~,~.~!!~~l:'-;}~3 

TN005000001 

10060 Proceeds from Property Sales . 
• 1.qoy(J~)~~tr~orcl.i.~ary .. ltef11s ... l\l.~t.co.~~nf~;,~~:. ··~~·~······-·····~-~~•~~· 
• ..!9~§p<J_Cialltems (Net Gain/Loss) 

,10091 lnter.ProJectE)(?e~~ q~shTr~~~fE)rl~ .. 

; .1 009? lnt~rE~oJ.~~t_~~<:~.:>C.'l~_:II'lnsfer Out __ , __ .....•.... 

1Q0~3 Tra~sfer~ ~~tv.~ee.n f'r?Qr~lll ~ncl f'roJe~t: I~ 

: ... 1.22~~ •.. T~~.~f~rs .. ~~l\\le.e.n.Pr()le?t.~~cl ... f'~()!lc:ra:::m::_·::Oc:u::.t~~~~~~~-· 
.1 .. 0 .. 1.0.0 .. Total. Other.fin.~n.CIDQ.Sources(l)S.~~L 

10000 . ~xces~J[)e.~?le.n~y) ?f T?t~l f<E!~eDue.()~erJL)n.cle.r) T?tal ... , 

.1.1020 f<e.gulr~ciJ\n~u~l [)e~t f'rin?lp~l f'~Yille.nts. 

1.10~Q .. E3egl']~!'l9.E:9uity ... . . • .. ·-·~=--~~~~~~~,.....
! 11040 .f'ri?.r .. f'.e.n?d.J\di~stments, .. Eguity.Tran.sfer~ .. ~nci .. C.?rr~?ti.o.~ .. ?.! .... 
' 11050 Changes 1n Cof11pen~ated.Abs.ence Balance 

.. 1.1 060 Qh~nqes.1n Q?n.tinqen.t ~i~bilityE3~~~~~e. 

• 11070 Qha.~~-~~~.LJD'-<l~o.qn~_E)(jf:en.s_l()':'l:r'll].sJti_()l)__L!.,a!Jjlity,~ 
11080 g~~~~e.s 1~ §pE)CI~I T~rlllf§~yer~n?e E3e.ne.~t~ Li~~ility 

t.!!O~O_C.h."f19e.s 1n Allov.~ancefor D()UtJtfui.J\C,C,()~nts- Dwelling Rents 
L 111QQ Qhanges 1n Allowancefor. D()ub\f"-1 Accou11ts .:. Qthe.r . 

. 11170 Adf11!!"1~tr~~~ Fee Equtty ·-~·--·-~-~~~ ••• 

"~' - .. ~. 09/30/2012 

'11.>.~~ .... >.~c·~~~.>~.~~~~.,~~··~~• .. ~r•.••~••~~ .. ~·~~~•L .............................................................................................................................................. } ..................... ·········•···········································+··········································'··················································································+············································'····································· 

11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 
[i:ik72..§~~~;,~·c~·~h···· 
. 11610 Land Purchases 

,11620 .El~ii.<Ji,n.~ Purchases ~---.... •. 
11630 ~~rnit~r~ ,& J::qu1pf11ent: [)v.lellin.q f>urch~se.s ... 

11640 Furnitur" ,&.E:,q~lpf1lent: Adf11!nt~t'-1'lt.::.iv::e~P:::ur~c~h:::a~se;::s:__ _____ .,..~ 
. 11650 ~e.as.e~old lmprovementsPurchase.s . 
' 11660 Infrastructure Purchases 
[ 13510. CFFf' [)E)I:ll§E)rYI~ef>~Yille.nts -- ············•···•···· 

.13,~2.!.E!E~.~~~!!J:~();!~Ln.g ,;,F;;ac;;;t;;;o;,r ;,F;;un;;;d;;;s;,_~~~~~. 
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Metropolitan Development & Houstng Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Revenue and Expense Summary 

;20.300 Net Ten~~t f<<:n.taLf<~Y,~~."~~~~~ ~~-~~~ ................. ~. 
: 70400 Tenant Revenue- Other 

' 70~9.0. Totai .. T~-~13.~t.f<.<:~~·-~·· -~~ .. ~~~~~ ........ . 
~-· 

~OQHUD PHj\(2p~~13ting Grants··-·~~~~~~·. 
'J0610 Capit~l (;r13nts 

lJ.071 0 M<Jn1J~~~Ell1.~.~-ee • • ...... 
: 70720 Asset Management Fee 

(7673a·· __ s·~~I<~~~P!~.~i£~~~::· ..... :~~~ .... 
,JQ74g Front Line Serv1ce F.~~ 
' 70750 Other 

70700 Total Fee Revenue 

L~:J.O_D ~ro_c,e.ed~ from Disposition ofAss~ts. fi!:ld. for .. ~.a!~~~~~
' 71310 Cost of Sale of Assets 

,:.;,;;;,:.;:;,;,::.:;,~,,,~,, 

TN005000007 , TN005000008 ' TN005000012 
''-'-""'-"'-"*'~~~~· ~"'~"'~-"">...<·'" '' "l'-'"""-'""'-"-''''~~-~~-

~~()_~1-~~~~3~4,341 ; ···~~~~ 

,985 

--~--

i __ 91~0.9.f\Jl.anagemeni£.~E> .. ~ .... ~·~~···~~·~~~~~--~~~~~~ .......... . 
91~1_o EJ99k:kE>~p1nQE~~ 

9.1.4.0.0 Adv~i~111QI3nd IV1.<lr.ke~ing~~~--,~~~~~---.. ·~~~~·~~ . 
. . 9150o .... E:.~.PI9YE>E> .. El'OI1E>~t.~()ntri_b_~tiolls.: .. J\.d.~l.l11.st_rl3ti\J.E> ... 
916Q.0.2ffige Expense~:s~~~~~·~~~~ 

· 91!09 ~e9a1 E:~p~n~e 
91800 Travel 

"""'""""'""""""~~------

: 9181 0 Allocated Overhead 

i 9196o oih~~ 
'"'"""""'"""'"'"""~ "'"~·-·--·----·····~~-- """""'"'~~~~~ 

.. 9_1gQQ ... 'fotl31._()p~r<JtillQ .. : .. J\d.~_tnt~trati\Je .... 

"''~~~~··'~.~~~-· 

: _9?.000 As~et IIJ1131113QE>~elltF~e 
:9210.0.!E>I11311t.Serv!c:e_~- Salaries 
' 92200 Relocation Costs 

!,~2300Er11pi9X<O~.I3.e.I1E>fil Contribution_~- Tenant Se~!C:~-~·-·· 
: .92400_Te_ll':'.nt Serv1ces - Oth_er 

! 92500 Total T.e.11ant Se~~e.s.__ ............ ~~ ..... .. 

!..~.3300 Gas __ 

93400 Fuel 

93500 Labor 
---·~-~---"'~'"""""""" 
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Metropolitan Development & Housing Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Revenue and Expense Summary 

*'~'-''''":i'..'.~ 

~~:}600 SeW~,L..,,.,.,~~·mm••m••~==•m. ......, •• 
L.?~7o.o .. Emplgyee B~~e~tC:o~tri~~ti?~s - Utilities 

~~~BOQ {)t~<lrl)tiliti.""-"E:<.£~,11_Se ·-~~~" 
L?3QQQ Total Util.itie.s .... 

941QO ()rdin~ry r.1~1~t~n~n<;~ a~d ()p~r~tio~s : L~!J?r 
. B42QQ()r~in3'ry Mamten~11ce and Opera~ons- Mat~!."l~.~.n_d()ther 

[ .. 91300 ... Qr~i~a'Y .. t:'l~.lllt.e.n.a(lt;.f'l .. ~n.~()pf')ri'jti?(l~(;()(ltract~ .... 
;_?~()OQ Ernplox."~"§."'(lefit Contril~-'!!ions - Ordina'Y .. t:'l~l(lten~nce . 
i 94000 Total Maintenance 

i 95100 Protective Serv1ces- Labor 
~··· ..... ""''"'"'. . . ..................... . 
L~S.2()Q Protectiyf')fi,~'Yige,s~()t~f')~<:;()(ltract Costs 
(95300 .. f'rot~.cti~.e ... s.erv1ces ~()ther 
i 95500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services 

TN005000007 ' TN005000008 

(95oo§~j~t,:;l Prot~~~~~e S~~~~~~: ......................... ····· ..... ···~··~~~~ . a~,;~a L · .. ·.·.~ ..••. ~.~ .... 1~~,01.q ........ -~~~~~---~z4,34?: ~ 

~--
i 96110 f'r?p~rtylnsurance 
L~6_gO~~ity lnsuran?~ .. 
i 96130 Work111en'sGompensation 
[96i4~AII.Otherlns~~~~~e · ··· 

'96100 Total insurance Premiums 

i962oo Other General Expenses 
; 96zi0 co,;p~~s~t~d Abs~~~~s ·· 

L9~~QQ P~y;;;~~tsin Lieu ofia~~s 
[_96400 B."9 .. (Jebt :.Tena.nt Rents 

; ?6[;00 §ad .. d.ebt.: .. r:<~ortgages 
~~6600 Bad debt- Other~. 

L9(l~QQ ~evera11ce Expense 
i 9600_0 ... !~tal Other Ge~eral Expense~ 

L?EJ719 ... 1nterest of Mortgage( or B()nd~Lf'ayable 

'··9(3720 ... lnterest.on .. [\Jotf')s .. f'.<lY~.~If'l .. (S~.?rt .. <l.n<J .. L.o~q.!f'lrrnJ 
! 96730 Amortization of Bond Issue Costs 

~6799 Totall~t~;~si E~p~~~~=a~d~~~~~~~ation c;e>st 

i ... ?E3.?9Q .... Total Operati~9 .. E:.xpf')~S~s ... 

! 97000 

~--·· 
! 97100 ExtraC>rclinl'lry r.1~~~te~ant;f') 

( .. 97200 . C1jSU<'lltyL,.o~~."'.S. - Non-capitalized -·=--==~"~~ 
: 97300 f:I()USing j\~sl~tl'lnt;e f'l'lYrn~nts 

!97350 lji\f',P~rtability:ID .. ~--~~~~=~ .... -~-·~~"~~ .. ~"~"~· .. ~~ 
i 97 400 l)~pr~~lati()n E:~P~~s~ . 

:~~~~~~fraud Losse~-~--~~· ••m•m•••m··-~···~"~~ ~~"···~···· 
·L?7(JOQ (;apital()utl~ys :9?ver~~~~tal~un<l"-·························· + 
~Q- Debt J>rin,~~e~lf'l'lYment- Governm~.ll.t,<'llf .. u.n .. <J.s.... · 

383.988 L . 
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Metropolitan Development & Houstng Agency (TN005) 
NASHVILLE, TN 
Project Revenue and Expense Summary 

TN005000007 TN005000008 I TN005000012 
"'i<':,;·,;«~,"fu"«>.''ii('H««1;\Wfh~~,":;,._,'ii>'l-.'iii':iW.?iiiiii'!>>>i ,, .. .',,',',',.,',,,"'''~'!,'!.<:<«-'h'i,f~,iiii-.-..W;;1Wiiii>">>>ic ;';iiiiii:'ili'i>>>">>'i$i"')~)'fc._W.{{<c'''c'' 

TN005000009 ! OTHER PROJ 

L~!B.Q9 Dw.<i.JJ)QILLJ~iJ~."~nt .. ~.~pe.n~e. ..•.• , 
! 90000 Totf11 ~xp~~s""- . 1,714,808j :=~~Ess,7~sl=--~~····. ·,·~·=-2~6~9,3~·~···.·~---·~--~-i 

------~------w ---·~~ '""'"""'"""'""'"=•~~~---""' 

10010 ()per~ti~QTra~sfe~ln · . , . 

l}~~;L~~:~:::~~rr:Y:::~u~~~~~;~;~~~:~~~.~i?~~.:::: ~·:: ..................... ~ .... ···· ·· ~~ .. =±·~····' 
.1.0Q59 ... f'ro.~e~cls.fr()~ .. t:J.()te.s, ... L.o<lns .. <l~.d. S.()n.cl.s....... ·········~ • 

· 10Q()Q_.f'rocee<J~ from P'-()P.",riY S?Je.s~~-----·---·~~ ...... 
10070 E;)(lrflorcli~ary lt~~s, t:JE)t(>atnl~()S~ 

:.20080 spe.c;ta~l!~ .. ~"t Gauy,t,()s.sL~. •• • ... 

Tra~sfE)r~ ~~tv;ee.~Pro.w.a.~ .. <ln.cl .. f'r.()Je~t : .. 10....... , .; 
L 100H~ Tran~f"r"-~etv;e>en f'~o~e.~tfl~cJ£!:"\J!am' ou: ___ , ___ ~· ···~~· 
' .1.9.109 .... l:()tf1.1 ... ()th~r.~n.fl.n.ct.~Q.~()~r~~s.(l)sE)~) .... 

10,S5 
r::~nn nnm~ t1n !=i~O,OOD)j 

~ ""'~l"~'""'' •• ,., .. , ""''JY"""' ,.! .... .,.,,, '"::f==~ .... _ ~"' 
11929 ""q~,r~ciJ\nnua_I..IJebt Pri~~~p~l Pay~ents, 

11Q~Q Begm,ng,,E:q~ity ................................................. ~~·-······~~-·····--~·· ... 
119~9 f'ri()r["~r'~cJ J\cli"'~t~e~t~, E;q"'ity}r<l~~f~rs ~ncl g~rre~ti?~ ()f 

.. 1.1.Q.5CJ. •. f.h.a__nges 1n C() .. ~~ated Abse~ce Balance 

; ... 1.1.060 .. ChanQ.~~··'n.Q()~ti.nge~t .. ~.i.f1.b_il.i.tyB.f11.~~C:~ .... 
:_!1.070 Ch.ang~~ .. '0 ... LJJ1.r~c,(?9D'.~.Il<ll"<lll.s.ton .. Transition .. ~i§l.bility 
, 11Q~Q Qhfl~ge.s .. 'n.Spectai.Ter~/~evera~~e s.en~~ts Lif1~ility 
U.!Q99 Chang~s,.:n A~()\t{a~<:,e for [)oubtful Accounts - Dwe~ing Rents 

1 .. 1.109 .... l::h.f1.n.9.~~··'n.J\II()\t{f1n~~ .. f?r.r:J?."'~tf~I.J\~~.o.~.n.ts .. : .. 9t.h.e.r ..... . 

_11.17Q_i\d.m..":!L~trative ~<l~..'l."!!L.~-....... ~~·~ ... ~ ....... . 
; 11180 Hou"-'~9 j\ss,tstflnc~ f'ay~e~t"- ~g~ity 

U 1190 . Unit Month~ .. i\.".~il.~tJ.l<l ........ ~ ........... . 
: 11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 

!1.?.2:9J'.~e.s.s<:;~sh .. 
11610 Land Purchases 

1.16?9. Building Purchases 

11630 . Fur~it~re 8. E;gutp~~~t: [)\t{~llin9 f'ur~hf1S~~ 
. 1.16~Q .. FurJ1.it~:.<o . .8. E:9'!!P~~.~l::.i\9~'i]l~r<ltiY,<l.f'ur~h~~-~S. .. 

... ~.J399,~3QJ~~- 21 ,954,7S,S,., 

; ... 11650 ~~aseholdl~prover~e.nts.Pur~.~fl.ses , + , 
L .. !.1(3() .. 0.Jnf:a.structure .. Purchas~s 
" 13510 CFFP Debt Servtce Payments 

". i~~§i F{~pi,~~;;,;;~~ti? .. "'i:.!~9 ~~ .. ~§rF~~;J~s~~=""""~~=··"""~= ............. "" ... 
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